
INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Monday, March 26, 2018 

6:00 P.M. 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 

AGENDA 

 

1. MINUTES  

a. February 26, 2018 Meeting 

 

2. OLD BUSINESS  

a. Update on engineering for Town Center crosswalks and upcoming RFP for 

construction services; discussion of whether to include a second flashing 

pedestrian beacon at Kiwanis driveway (in addition to grant-funded beacon 

provided by MDOT for the Cottage Street intersection) 

 

3. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Street light petition: Highland Ridge 

b. Update on public information outreach, including proposed debt service cost 

share between Sewer and General Fund, for June 2018 sewer borrowing 

referendum 

 

4. STAFF UPDATES 

a. Update on Hampden Capital Program work underway  

b. Update on CSO Annual Report filed on 2/28/18 and DEP site visit on 3/20/18 

c. Review of new sewer data from CCTV inspections added to Town GIS data  

d. Town of Hampden and City of Bangor March 2018 comment letters to DEP 

regarding Fourth Preliminary Draft of the 2018 General Permit for the 

Discharge of Stormwater from Small Municipal Separate Stormwater 

Systems (MS4s) 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
7. ADJOURN 



INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Monday, February 26, 2018 

 
MINUTES – DRAFT   

 
Attending: 
 Councilor Mark Cormier, Chairman Town Manager Angus Jennings 
 Mayor Ivan McPike     DPW Director Sean Currier  
 Councilor Dennis Marble   Town Attorney Ed Bearor  
 Councilor Terry McAvoy   Public Safety Dir. Joe Rogers 
 Councilor David Ryder    Town Clerk Paula Scott 
 Councilor Stephen Wilde   Dudley Patterson, PW Foreman 
 Councilor Greg Sirois 
        
Chairman Cormier called the meeting to order at 6 PM. 
 

1. MINUTES  
a. January 29, 2018 Meeting – Motion by Councilor McAvoy seconded 

by Councilor Sirois to approve the minutes as written. Motion carried 

seven in favor and none against.  

 

2. OLD BUSINESS  

a. Update on Hampden Capital Program work underway. 

Town Manager Jennings had no new information to report. 

 

b. Update on CSO Annual Report due to DEP on March 1, 2018 

Town Manager Jennings stated that the CSO annual report is in 

process.  Director Currier does most of the report, the Town Manager 

adds the financial information to the report. 

      Director Currier stated that this is a legal document he is signing.  On   

      the form it states that we (the town) are abiding by the updated CSO  

      master plan. The Town does not have “updated CSO Master Plan”  

Councilor Sirois asked Director Currier if he can add a note stating that 

the Town does not have an Updated CSO Plan.  Director Currier stated 

that there is a section for notes and he will note that we are seeking 

funding this budget cycle to update the Plan. Manager Jennings stated 

that this also ties in to a later agenda item which is the Fiscal 

Sustainability Plan and that this can count as both.     

 Mayor McPike asked what CSO stands for, to which Manager Jennings 

answered,  “Combined Sewer Overflow”   

Director Currier stated we have one CSO left, the Town did have 6 

CSO locations in the past. 

 

        

townmanager
Typewritten Text
1-a



c. Update regarding implementation of Flow Control Ordinance 

Town Manager Jennings stated that this is underway.  He is working 

on getting a letter out to the commercial haulers along with an 

application this week. Town Manager Jennings stated he was looking 

to get licensing done in March although it won’t be a problem if it 

extends past April 1 since the new Fiberight facility won’t be accepting 

waste, and the Town’s MSW will continue to be hauled to PERC until 

further notice. 

 

d. Update on installation of floating dock at Marina 

Director Currier told the Committee that the docks have been 

delivered.  The docks will be installed when the weather permits, and 

coordinated with Hamlin’s Marina. 

  

Councilor Sirois had previously requested that legal counsel be present for 

the discussion on the next few agenda items . 

 

f. Next item was 2 f – taken out of order) Discussion of licensure of 

Public Works employees – request of Councilor Ryder 

Councilor Marble stated for the record that he does not think this is an 

appropriate agenda item for this committee since it as a management 

issue and there are staff members present. 

Councilor Sirois agreed with Councilor Marble.  

Councilor Ryder stated that he just wanted to know where Public 

Works was at with Class II licensing of employees. Councilor McAvoy 

stated that he thought there had been a vote by Council regarding this 

issue. Manager Jennings said that there had been a committee 

discussion in July. There was no vote, just a goal to get everyone with 

a Class II. He stated that he has reported twice in the last two months 

that it is underway, but that he is not getting into specifics about which 

employees. He stated that he does not want to withhold information if 

someone is entitled to it, but that is why he has looked to Ed, to help 

determine if it is within the Council’s scope, or the Manager’s scope.    

Councilor Ryder said he just wanted to know where we were at, saying 

that when it was discussed previously, it was because there were 

people out and it would make it easier for Sean. He said his 

understanding was that there was a policy about it.  

 

Councilor Ryder stated that if there is a policy he wants it enforced, 

stating he thought it was 6 months from date of hire. Manager 

Jennings said there is no policy, that it is in the job description. 



Director Currier explained that it says in most DPW job descriptions, 90 

days or at the discretion of the Public Works Director.  Transfer Station 

job descriptions currently do not have that requirement, but we are 

working to incorporate that.  Manager Jennings stated that there were 

a couple of operator position descriptions that had similar language 

that were revised to have a date specified. He offered that he does not 

believe that timelines for employees to reach certain goals is 

something to be discussed at committee level.  

Councilor Sirois stated he does not think discussion of management is 

the responsibility of anyone on this Committee. Attorney Bearor asked 

if the question is about a specific employee, or to state a position of the 

Council, such as ‘as a policy, we would like to have everyone in Public 

Works obtain a Class II license by a certain time’. 

 

Town Manager Jennings asked Director Currier if it has affected 

operations? Director Currier explained that it has not at this time.  We 

will be getting new vehicles that would require CDL license. In regard 

to the employees in question, only one had an offer letter specifying a 

timeframe for CDL acquisition.  All are currently working on the CDL 

and the one required to has obtained his permit.  

Mayor McPike stated that if you want something discussed, bring it to 

the Chairman.   

Town Manager Jennings stated he is concerned about providing 

information on individual employees at a public meeting, and because 

of the size of the department he cannot give specific information 

without it being identifiable as related to specific personnel, therefore 

he has provided general updates. 

Councilor Ryder stated he thought he was told six (6) months, if it 

hasn’t been a problem, then he is fine with it. 

Town Manager stated that he and the Director agree it’s in the best 

interest of the Public Works Department to get employees licensed and 

that the work to do so continues to be underway. Councilor Ryder 

stated he is trying to get to a point where it doesn’t hurt the Public 

Works department Attorney Bearor clarified that this is not a policy but 

wording in a job description and Director Currier agreed. Councilor 

McAvoy wanted to know if an employee goes beyond 90 days, should 

he presume the Department has no further interest in it? Councilor 

McAvoy directed several more pointed questions to the Director and 

Councilor Marble interjected stating that he stands by his original 

comment. 

Councilor Sirois said that it is not the job of anyone sitting around the 

table to get involved in the management of employees in a 



Department. He said it is the job of the Department Head and the 

Town Manager to do so. He said it is the Council’s job to set policy. He 

said if we want to set a policy that we want them to all get a license 

within x number of days, we need to do it and move on. The Town 

hired Mr. Currier to run a Department and we need to let him do it. 

Councilor Marble asked if we want to air out problems in public. He 

said we have undermined a lot of trust in the town and when he asks 

for information from the Town Manager he gets it.  It is the obligation of 

a Councilor to work with staff as a team. 

 

e. Discussion of reorganization of Public Works – request of 

Councilor McAvoy 

Councilor McAvoy asked what is the mission of the Public Works 

Department going to be in the future?  The same or more efficient?  He 

said he thinks half of plowing personnel could be let go.  “It seems 

pretty straightforward.  Put out a bid for plowing and award the bid.”  

Councilor Marble stated the Town Manager has suggested a process 

by which Public Works could be evaluated.   

Town Manager Jennings stated we need a credible process, personnel 

are affected and a change to a structure that was more reliant on 

contracted vendors would be a major change and would need to be 

managed carefully to maintain historical levels of service. 

Councilor McAvoy stated it can be analyzed but you are just making 

money for a lot of people.  He said it’s just like doing the mowing, there 

is nothing complicated about it.  You put out an RFP, award the bid.  

The mowing was put out to bid four years ago. The Public Works 

Director at the time said he could do it for less money. Councilor 

McAvoy stated he did not see where the Town could do it cheaper, he 

did not see it reflected anywhere. He does not see the need to analyze 

it any further. 

Town Manager Jennings stated, this why he put some of the 

background information in the packet.  The previous Town Manager 

and the Public Works Director put together a comparative analysis 

based on costs, services, road miles etc. from several “peer” towns.  

Some updates   had been made to it, but he did not assign staff to 

update the work in its entirety because it would take staff time to do so 

and based on the responses when staff have done this type of 

comparative analysis he does not think that the Committee would see 

any work by staff as credible, even though he said that during his time 

here he thinks the work that he and staff have done has been nothing 

but credible.  There is not enough time or resources for staff or 



Management to do time-intensive analysis especially if it won’t be 

received by Councilors as legitimate. 

Councilor McAvoy stated he has never seen the backup of how the 

numbers were arrived at.  He said he is skeptical of what is produced 

by staff. He said the Manager is right, he has not seen the backup after 

a year, year and a half.   

Councilor Marble stated he reached out to Orono, and Brewer to see if 

the numbers are competitive.  The numbers correspond almost exactly 

to what was given us in the packet.  

Town Manager Jennings stated he was looking for a scope of what the 

Committee was looking for.  He stated his feel is the added data is a 

couple of years old. The Department budget has gone up over the last 

two years. Manager Jennings stated his recommendation is that the 

Council should engage a third-party consultant specialized in evaluating 

organizational structure in order to take a serious look at this issue.  

 

3. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Consideration of referring to Finance Committee a 

recommendation to amend the FY18 Sewer Budget to: 

- Increase budgeted expenses by $73,500 to authorize 

expenditure of revenues projected in FY18 but not included in 

expense budget, for the purpose of supporting engineering 

services for sewer capital projects, support for creating a 

sewer Fiscal Sustainability Plan and/or Asset Management 

Plan, and dedication of funds toward a sewer reserve 

- Increase budgeted revenues in the 60-79 revenue line to reflect 

anticipated collection of $53,305 in unbudgeted sewer 

connection fees 

- Increase budgeted expenses by $53,305 to authorize 

expenditure of revenues projected to be generated in FY18 but 

not included in approved expense budget, for the purpose of 

supporting mitigation of anticipated Fiberight/Coastal flow 

impacts on existing infrastructure, and engineering services 

for other sewer projects 

 

Town Manager Jennings explained the proposal to the Committee. 

 

Mayor McPike asked if borrowing through the State Revolving Fund is 

two (2) points lower on borrowing? 

Town Manager Jennings stated that yes, at least two.  



Mayor McPike made a motion to refer to Finance Committee to add 

$73,500 to sewer reserve.  This motion was seconded by Councilor 

Ryder.  Motion was passed seven in favor and none against.  

Discussion after the vote: 

Town Manager Jennings asked about the connection fee to the sewer. 

Councilor Ryder asked does the force main from the Coldbrook Road 

area feed directly to the manhole on Route 1A that is referenced in the 

packet materials? Director Currier stated it is gravity fed but the volume 

of discharge could cause problems if changes to the manhole 

configuration are not made in advance. 

Councilor Ryder made a motion to amend the sewer revenue budget to 

reflect anticipated receipt of $53,305 and to amend the sewer expense 

budget to authorize the transfer to sewer reserve in the amount of 

$53,305.00. This motion was seconded by Councilor McAvoy.  The vote 

was seven in favor and none against.  Director Currier stated he would 

come back with a cost of manhole repairs.  

 

b. Review of MDOT letters regarding authorization of trucks over 

weight limit on local roads related to MDOT project 023326.00 (hot 

mix asphalt overlay, Hampden and Newburgh) and MDOT project 

023318.00 (hot mix asphalt overlay, Hampden and Hermon) 

Councilor Ryder stated they will need gravel.  He asked when are they        

planning to do it? Manager Jennings said that MDOT has not yet 

provided specific information about construction timing or routes. 

Councilor Marble made a motion to refer to Council, this was seconded 

by Councilor Sirois.  The vote was seven in favor and none         

against. (7- 0) 

  

c. Discussion of potential costs and benefits of preparing and 

implementing a Fiscal Sustainability Plan to meet requirements for 

potential sewer infrastructure financing through the State Revolving 

Fund 

Town Manager Jennings explained the need to know what the       

Committee wants to do. 

Councilor Ryder stated it would be good to see comparative cost of 

interest rates. 

Councilor McAvoy stated it may be wasted money on the plan if we don’t 

pursue the SRF financing.  Town Manager Jennings stated it would be a 

helpful document on its own merits as it will serve as a system-wide 

Sewer Capital Program, which is greatly needed. 

Councilor Marble asked if we can seek Environmental Trust money? 



Town Manager Jennings stated that it may be eligible since this would 

improve environmental quality in the town; he said it would ultimately be 

up to the Trust Committee and to the Town Council to approve any 

funding request but we can ask. 

      Director Currier stated it’s a useful document.  

      Councilor Ryder stated to save money on interest we should pursue. 

      Voted seven in favor and none against. 

 

d. Discussion of sleeping while on the clock by Public Works – 

request of Councilor Ryder 

 

This item was taken up after 2 e. 

Councilor Ryder stated he had some complaints from citizens about the 

Public Works crew coming through after they plowed/cleared their 

driveway, and Public Works was filling the end of their driveways again 

with snow. He feels that if it is snowing the plow trucks need to be 

rolling and if plowing all night there would not be such a build up. 

Attorney Bearor stated that the reason he is there is to keep this 

discussion at a certain level. It needs to be one discussing what time 

and how the Town of Hampden is plowing its roads, not who is sleeping 

and when.   

Mayor McPike asked what are we currently doing?  

Director Currier stated that one person operates the plow truck without 

redundancy as opposed to DOT which works 15 hours shifts with8 

hours off and another driver takes over that truck.  We are considered 

emergency services and do not have the CDL requirement of time on 

and time off. But for safety and best practices, if a driver comes in at 4 

am to 10 pm will want them to take a break because they are 

exhausted. We need people there overnight to respond to emergency 

services. Typically traffic has died down from 10pm-2am and that is 

when we are recouping. 

Chairman Cormier asked about the call-in if it is 4 hours. 

Director Currier stated yes, it is a four-hour call-in if I send them home 

at 10, they come back at 2, it would be 4 hours call-in. Chairman 

Cormier clarified that they are not getting paid for not working and 

Director Currier agreed.  Director Currier stated that these guys are not 

getting paid for sitting at home waiting to be called in. He said they don’t 

get on call time for November to May, even though they must be 

available., They cannot plan anything with their families in case they 

may get called in. 



Councilor McAvoy stated that they don’t get paid for waiting to get 

called in, but they get paid for lying in a cot, waiting to go out and  

plow? 

Director Currier stated he did not know how to respond to that referring 

to the tone of the comment. 

Councilor McAvoy stated a simply yes or no would be good. 

Councilor Sirois twice called for a point of order, saying Councilor 

McAvoy  should not be talking like that to anybody, including town staff, 

and the manager in that tone and the  way he is coming across. 

Town Manager Jennings stated that in some of what he read on 

whether and when it is appropriate to pay wages for down time spent, 

key questions include whether an employee has control over their time 

if they are between shifts, and if they have ability to go home and have 

time off during a storm event, are they compensated when they do not 

have practical ability to control their time off.  

Attorney Bearor stated this is a very complicated topic.  The Town 

needs to pay them whether they are sleeping or changing the oil if 

required to be there. If they are going to be at the job site, they need to 

be paid.  

Councilor Ryder stated he does not understand it.   

Director Currier pointed out the liability issue if a driver hits someone 

due to fatigue on his way home. 

Councilor Ryder a lot of other departments send their people home the 

next day, if the council is fine then I guess I am fine with it.   

Councilor McAvoy stated he was not fine with it. 

Councilor Marble stated he was fine with the Department Head making   

the call.  

Councilor Sirois stated he is fine with leaving it to the Department Head.  

Chairman Cormier stated he was in favor with whatever is the most cost 

effective for the town.  

Mayor McPike stated he has concerns, we don’t pay people to be on 

call. 

Director Currier stated that the crew are expected to be there if they are 

called in 24/7.   

The Town Manager stated that it is in the job description, and it is a 

clear expectation that DPW employees are on call as needed. 

Mayor McPike asked if someone plows for 12-14 hours, then rest for 4 

hours is that overtime? 

Director Currier stated that yes it would be.  

Councilor Marble explained about the tough staffing at the Homeless 

Shelter, and what they did.  He stated he made individual calls on 

whether staff slept overnight.  “We beat hell out of town staff”. 



      

e. Discussion of third-party inspections (Building and Electrical, 

etc.) – request of Councilor McAvoy 

Councilor McAvoy stated his proposal would be that the town 

discontinue doing inspections and instead refer to third party 

inspectors.  Employees are highly trained firefighters and EMTs and 

they should be available for their primary functions. 

Town Manager Jennings stated we are in union contract discussions 

and if the Council is serious about a change such as this it should be 

introduced in those discussions. 

Chief Joe Rogers stated he appreciates the interest in freeing up 

firefighters’ time, but we would still have to do plumbing and life safety 

inspections.  Third party inspectors work for the builder, our personnel 

work for the community.  Our inspections ensure Code is properly 

applied.  Life safety comes first.  It would free up some time, but we do 

try to schedule properly.  Still the Town’s name is  on the Certificate of 

Occupancy, if the homebuyer has problems they will come back on us. 

Councilor McAvoy asked what happens if the builder has scheduled an 

inspection and an emergency call comes in? 

Chief Rogers stated that we are very accommodating.  People 

understand, emergencies comes first.  

Councilor McAvoy stated that third party inspectors are incentivized to 

be there on time.  The town’s inspectors are taking multiple vehicles to 

these inspections.  Would it not be cleaner to have a third party do 

these inspections?  Councilor McAvoy stated that the Town did not 

inspect his plumbing. 

Chief Rogers explained that in the past, the Town has had back up 

contract employees do inspections on plumbing.  Chief Rogers stated 

that the Town is getting a pretty good deal by having fire personnel do 

these inspections.  People are trained in several areas, serving in 

many capacities, within the town. 

Councilor Sirois stated point of order after comments by Councilor 

McAvoy. 

Councilor McAvoy stated the Town would be better letting the private 

sector handle the inspections. 

 

4. STAFF UPDATES 

There were none 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

There were none 

 



6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

Councilor Ryder asked if culvert refer to culvers or underdrains. 

Director Currier stated there is a difference between underdrains and 

culverts.  

 
7. ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Rosemary Bezanson, Public Works 



  
 
TO:  Infrastructure Committee  

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  March 21, 2018 

RE:  Update on Town Center crosswalks 
 

 

The Water District issued an Invitation for Bid for their replacement of the water main in 
Route 1A between Cottage Street and Western Ave., with bids to be opened on March 
29 at 1 PM.  The bid documents include two crosswalks and pedestrian beacons, and 
bidder pricing will break out separately the proposed lump sum price for that work. 
 
The Water District will award a contract to the bidder it finds most advantageous.  At 
that time, the successful bidder’s proposed cost for the pedestrian improvements will be 
presented to the Council for funding, or not.   
 
As you know, the Town received a MDOT grant for one flashing pedestrian beacon.  At 
public meetings last fall, support was expressed to install beacons in the locations of 
both of the proposed crosswalks.  Director Currier obtained a price quote of $6,200 to 
purchase a second flashing beacon. 
 
If the construction work is funded, the contract would proceed under the oversight of the 
Water District, with construction inspection in coordination with DPW.  If construction of 
the pedestrian improvements is not funded, in whole or in part, a change order would be 
executed to remove this work from the contract. 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
2-a



213322.06 Main Road North Water Main Replacement Phase 3
Issue Date: March 2018 Hampden Water District

INVITATION TO BID
WOODARD & CURRAN 00 11 16-1

SECTION 00 11 16

INVITATION TO BID

The Hampden Water District (Owner) invites Bidders to submit sealed Bids for the Main Road 
North Water Main Replacement Phase 3 Project, which includes but is not limited to the installation 
of approximately 885 LF of 12-inch Ductile Iron water main on Route 1 in the Town of Hampden, 
Maine, providing temporary water, 3/4-inch copper services, new bituminous sidewalk, crosswalk and 
beacon, and ledge removal. Also included in the Scope of Work is earthwork, state highway and 
driveway pavement repair, surface restoration, erosion control, traffic control, and all materials and 
equipment, services and construction inherent to the Work.

The Work shall be substantially complete within 30 calendar days from the commencement of 
Contract Time and completed and ready for final payment 45 calendar days from the 
commencement of Contract Time. 

A pre-Bid conference will not be held.

Sealed Bids will be received until 1:00PM local time on March 29, 2018 at Owner’s offices: 
Hampden Water District offices, 140 Main Road North, Hampden, Maine 04444. Bids will then 
and there be publicly opened and read aloud. Bids received after the time of announced opening 
will not be accepted.

Bidding documents have been prepared by Woodard & Curran, Inc., One Merchant Plaza, Suite 
501, Bangor, Maine 04401. Bidding Documents may be examined at the following locations on or 
after March 9, 2018, at 10:00AM.

Issuing Office:
Woodard & Curran, Inc.
One Merchant Plaza
Suite 501
Bangor, ME 04401

Owner’s Offices:
Hampden Water District
140 Main Road North
Hampden, ME 04444

Construction Summary
734 Chestnut Street
Manchester, NH 03104

Construct Connect (Bid Clerk)
28 N. Clark Street, Suite 450
Chicago, IL 60602

Bidding Documents may be obtained on or after March 9, 2018 at 10:00AM:

in hardcopy from Issuing Office as follows.

Non-refundable purchase price for each set of Bidding Documents: $50.00 payable by 
certified check, treasurer's or cashier's check, or money order to Woodard and Curran, 
Inc.



213322.06 Main Road North Water Main Replacement Phase 3
Issue Date: March 2018 Hampden Water District

INVITATION TO BID
WOODARD & CURRAN 00 11 16-2

Non-refundable charge for delivery of Bidding Documents by mail or delivery 
service: Additional $15.00 payable by certified check, treasurer's or cashier's check, 
or money order to Woodard and Curran, Inc. 

Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids; neither Owner nor Engineer 
assumes any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of the incomplete 
sets of Bidding Documents or for modifications to the Bidding Documents including electronic 
conversion.

Bid security in the amount of 5 percent of the Bid must accompany the Bid in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders.

Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. Owner further reserves the right to reject the Bid 
of any Bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to not be eligible or 
responsible. Owner may also reject the Bid of any Bidder if Owner believes that it would not be in 
the best interest of the Project or the public to make an award to that Bidder. Owner also reserves 
the right to waive all informalities not involving price, time, or changes in the Work and to negotiate 
contract terms with the Successful Bidder.

END OF SECTION



 



N

S

EW

N

S

EW

WOODARD
CURRAN

COMMITMENT & INTEGRITY DRIVE RESULTS

One Merchants Plaza, Suite 501
Bangor, Maine 04401 
800. 564.2333  |  www.woodardcurran.com

S

 

T

 

A

 

T

 

E

 

 

 O
 F

 
 

 M

 

 
A

 

I

 

N

 

E

P
 
R

 
O

 

F

 

E

 

S

 

S

 

I

 
O

 
N

 A L

 

 

 
E

 

N

 

G

 

I

 

N

 

E

 
E

 
R

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

D

NATHAN T.

MCLAUGHLIN

No. 10667



W
OO

DA
RD

CU
RR

AN
CO

MM
IT

ME
NT

 &
 IN

TE
GR

IT
Y 

DR
IV

E 
RE

SU
LT

S

On
e M

er
ch

an
ts

 P
laz

a, 
Su

ite
 50

1
Ba

ng
or

, M
ain

e 0
44

01
 

80
0. 

56
4.2

33
3  

|  w
ww

.w
oo

da
rd

cu
rra

n.
co

m

S

 

T

 

A

 

T

 

E

 

 

 
O

 
F

 
 

 
M

 

 
A

 

I

 

N

 

E

P
 R

 O

 

F

 

E

 

S

 

S

 

I

 
O

 
N

 
A

 
L

 

 

 
E

 

N

 

G

 

I

 

N

 

E

 
E

 R

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

D

N
A

T
H

A
N

 
T

.

M
C

L
A

U
G

H
L

I
N

N
o

.
 
1

0
6

6
7

C-001

LE
GE

ND
, S

HE
ET

 IN
DE

X,
AB

BR
EV

IA
TI

ON
S,

 G
EN

ER
AL

 N
OT

ES
 A

ND
KE

Y 
PL

AN

22x34 SHEET
1:1



W
OO

DA
RD

CU
RR

AN
CO

MM
IT

ME
NT

 &
 IN

TE
GR

IT
Y 

DR
IV

E 
RE

SU
LT

S

On
e M

er
ch

an
ts

 P
laz

a, 
Su

ite
 50

1
Ba

ng
or

, M
ain

e 0
44

01
 

80
0. 

56
4.2

33
3  

|  w
ww

.w
oo

da
rd

cu
rra

n.
co

m

S

 

T

 

A

 

T

 

E

 

 

 
O

 
F

 
 

 
M

 

 
A

 

I

 

N

 

E

P
 R

 O

 

F

 

E

 

S

 

S

 

I

 
O

 
N

 
A

 
L

 

 

 
E

 

N

 

G

 

I

 

N

 

E

 
E

 R

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

D

N
A

T
H

A
N

 
T

.

M
C

L
A

U
G

H
L

I
N

N
o

.
 
1

0
6

6
7

C-101

MA
IN

 R
OA

D 
NO

RT
H 

PL
AN

 &
 P

RO
FI

LE
ST

A.
 0+

00
 T

O 
ST

A.
 9+

00

22x34 SHEET
1:1

·

·



W
OO

DA
RD

CU
RR

AN
CO

MM
IT

ME
NT

 &
 IN

TE
GR

IT
Y 

DR
IV

E 
RE

SU
LT

S

On
e M

er
ch

an
ts

 P
laz

a, 
Su

ite
 50

1
Ba

ng
or

, M
ain

e 0
44

01
 

80
0. 

56
4.2

33
3  

|  w
ww

.w
oo

da
rd

cu
rra

n.
co

m

S

 

T

 

A

 

T

 

E

 

 

 
O

 
F

 
 

 
M

 

 
A

 

I

 

N

 

E

P
 R

 O

 

F

 

E

 

S

 

S

 

I

 
O

 
N

 
A

 
L

 

 

 
E

 

N

 

G

 

I

 

N

 

E

 
E

 R

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

D

N
A

T
H

A
N

 
T

.

M
C

L
A

U
G

H
L

I
N

N
o

.
 
1

0
6

6
7

C-201

CI
VI

L D
ET

AI
LS

 1

22x34 SHEET
1:1



W
OO

DA
RD

CU
RR

AN
CO

MM
IT

ME
NT

 &
 IN

TE
GR

IT
Y 

DR
IV

E 
RE

SU
LT

S

On
e M

er
ch

an
ts

 P
laz

a, 
Su

ite
 50

1
Ba

ng
or

, M
ain

e 0
44

01
 

80
0. 

56
4.2

33
3  

|  w
ww

.w
oo

da
rd

cu
rra

n.
co

m

S

 

T

 

A

 

T

 

E

 

 

 
O

 
F

 
 

 
M

 

 
A

 

I

 

N

 

E

P
 R

 O

 

F

 

E

 

S

 

S

 

I

 
O

 
N

 
A

 
L

 

 

 
E

 

N

 

G

 

I

 

N

 

E

 
E

 R

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

D

N
A

T
H

A
N

 
T

.

M
C

L
A

U
G

H
L

I
N

N
o

.
 
1

0
6

6
7

C-202

CI
VI

L D
ET

AI
LS

 2

22x34 SHEET
1:1



W
OO

DA
RD

CU
RR

AN
CO

MM
IT

ME
NT

 &
 IN

TE
GR

IT
Y 

DR
IV

E 
RE

SU
LT

S

On
e M

er
ch

an
ts

 P
laz

a, 
Su

ite
 50

1
Ba

ng
or

, M
ain

e 0
44

01
 

80
0. 

56
4.2

33
3  

|  w
ww

.w
oo

da
rd

cu
rra

n.
co

m

S

 

T

 

A

 

T

 

E

 

 

 
O

 
F

 
 

 
M

 

 
A

 

I

 

N

 

E

P
 R

 O

 

F

 

E

 

S

 

S

 

I

 
O

 
N

 
A

 
L

 

 

 
E

 

N

 

G

 

I

 

N

 

E

 
E

 R

L

I

C

E
N

S

E

D

N
A

T
H

A
N

 
T

.

M
C

L
A

U
G

H
L

I
N

N
o

.
 
1

0
6

6
7

C-203

CI
VI

L D
ET

AI
LS

 3

22x34 SHEET
1:1



  
 
TO:  Infrastructure Committee 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  March 21, 2018 

RE:  Highland Ridge street light petition 
 

 

Petition attached, along with Chief Rogers’ report pursuant to the Street Light Policy. 
 
Chief Rogers included with his report the enclosed photos, as well as a related 2008 
memo regarding a previous neighborhood request for street lights.  I spoke with 
neighborhood representative Neil Adams and he advised that the prior request was for 
lighting internal to the neighborhood, whereas the present request relates to the 
intersection with Route 1A. 
 
At my request, Director Currier contacted Emera to verify that the utility pole adjacent to 
the Stop Sign is of adequate height to allow installation of a new street light.   
 
If the Council favors installing a new street light in this location, I recommend deferring 
installation until the PUC approves rates for LED lights to allow installation of an LED 
street light. 
 
I have advised the neighborhood that their petition will be considered at Monday’s 
meeting. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-a























  
 
TO:  Infrastructure Committee  

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  March 21, 2018 

RE:  Public outreach regarding June 12 ballot on sewer borrowing authorization 
 

 

In its approval of the sewer borrowing authorization ordinance, the Council directed that 
debt service to pay for the Rte. 1A and the Western Ave projects come from the Sewer 
Fund, with funding to pay the Grist Mill Bridge debt service from the General Fund.   
 
Our public outreach plan is to get this information to voters through one or more town 
newsletters, a postcard mailing, and an envelope stuffer in the upcoming sewer bill. 
 
I have also corresponded with Bond Counsel about whether this could/should be 
conveyed in any way in the Treasurer's Statement.  Atty. Pittman advised that, as long 
as the Treasurer’s Statement includes required information, it can also include other 
information; however, he acknowledged that his suggested format (below) – while 
legally satisfactory – won’t necessarily come through clearly to voters: 
 

2.  Costs 
 
Principal and interest relating to the Route 1A and Western Avenue projects will 
be payable from the Sewer Fund, and principal and interest relating to the Grist 
Mill Bridge project will be payable from the General Fund.  At an estimated 
interest rate of ___% for a term of ___ years, the estimated costs of this bond 
issue will be: 
 
Total Principal                                     $2,113,400 
(comprised of) 
            Route 1A/Western Ave.:        $X 
            Grist Mill Bridge:                    $XX    
 
Total Interest                                       $ 
(comprised of) 
            Route 1A/Western Ave.:        $Y 
            Grist Mill Bridge:                    $YY 
 
Total Debt Service                              $ 
(comprised of) 
            From Sewer Fund:                  $Z 
            From General Fund:                $ZZ 

 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-b



 
I am confident that our public communications can get the point across that, in the initial 
years, the proposed debt authorization can be absorbed in the current sewer rate 
structure.  However I am hesitant to use wording along the lines Atty. Pittman suggests 
in the Treasurer's Statement for the simple reason that, while the current Council's 
intent is to split the debt service between Sewer and General Funds, a future 
Treasurer/Council may regret boxing themselves into that payment structure, based on 
future capital planning including potential for unplanned capital expenses.  A lot can 
happen over a 20 year borrowing term. 
 
At Monday’s meeting we can review both the public outreach methods and strategy, 
and I’ll invite input about how best to present the Treasurer’s Statement.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN  

PUBLIC NOTICE OF ORDINANCE ADOPTION 

 

 Notice is hereby given that after a public hearing duly noticed and held on March 5, 

2018, by vote taken on March 19, 2018 the Town Council of the Town of Hampden adopted an 

ordinance entitled: 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE APPROPRIATION AND BORROWING OF 

FUNDS TO FINANCE THE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT OF PORTIONS OF 

HAMPDEN’S SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM. 

 

A copy of the Ordinance as adopted is available for public inspection at the office of the Town 

Clerk at 106 Western Avenue in Hampden weekdays from 7:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.  This Notice 

constitutes the notice of ordinance adoption under Section 213(b) of the Charter of the Town of 

Hampden.   



  
 
TO:  Infrastructure Committee 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  March 21, 2018 

RE:  Update on Capital Program 
 

 

There has been progress on the Capital Program since last month’s meeting. I’ll present 
an update at Monday’s meeting, and continue to work with staff to fully build out the 
Capital Program. 
 
Prior to or concurrent with the Council’s adoption of an updated Capital Program later 
this spring, I recommend Council adoption of a policy statement – either a Resolution or 
an Order – to objectively define what constitutes a capital expense.  This very 
fundamental question has come up several times, and I think it will be helpful to clear 
this up.  I have included below sample language, as a starting point for discussion:  
 
Sample Capital Program Policy Language 
As used in the Town of Hampden Capital Program, a capital project is defined as a 
major, nonrecurring expenditure that includes one or more of the following: 
 

1. Any construction of a new facility (i.e. public building, sewer main, storm sewer, 
roadway, recreational facility), an addition to, or extension of such a facility, 
provided that the cost is $10,000 or more and that the improvement will have a 
useful life of three years or more. 

2. Any nonrecurring rehabilitation of all or a part of a building, its grounds, a facility, 
or equipment, provided that the cost is $10,000 or more and the improvement will 
have a useful life of three years or more. 

3. Any purchase or replacement of major equipment to support community 
programs provided that the cost is $10,000 or more and will be funded through a 
capital reserve account. 

4. Any acquisition of land for a public purpose that is not part of an individual capital 
improvements project or a program that is implemented through individual capital 
improvements projects provided that the cost is $25,000 or more. 

 
This language is essentially a first draft, included as a starting point for discussion. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-a



    Please use the Annual Progress Report Instructions when filling out this report.

Permittee: Contact Person:

Address: Telephone No.

MEPDES Permit No.

Maine License No.

1. Information on Combined Sewer System

A.  Current sewered population

B. Current number of residential users (connections to sewer)

C. Current number of commercial/industrial users (connections to sewer)

D. Current average residential user charge for 8000 cubic feet per year, ($/year) $

E. Median Household Income (MHI), ($/year) $

F. Current residential user charge expressed as percent of MHI, (%) %

G. Original number of CSO locations at beginning of abatement program

H. Current number of CSO locations

I. Percent reduction of CSOs to date, (%) %

J. List any CSOs removed in reporting year, (list individually)

1.

2.

3.

4.

K. Total sewer footage, (feet)

L. Original percentage of combined sewer to total sewer, (%) %

M. Current percentage of combined sewer to total sewer, (%) %

N. Percent reduction of combined sewer, (%) %

W007967

1,559

1,430

129

928.00

147,600

1.05

83

Name

Indicates Cell With A Dropdown List

CSO #

Town of Hampden

106 Western Avenue

Hampden, Me. 04444

6

1

207-862-3337

ME0102512

88,032

MAINE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-Q2017    Rev Date: 12/13/2017

Indicates Cell Value Calculated By Spreadsheet

Sean Currier

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 1

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-b



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

2. CSO Progress

A. Are you on schedule with your approved CSO Abatement Plan? (Please see Yes

  attached instructions)

B. If existing schedule is behind the approved schedule, list the reasons why and how the permittee

proposes to catch up in order to comply with the approved schedule.

C. List major accomplishments last year to reduce or abate CSOs, (list individually)

1.

2.

3.

D. Costs:

1) Total original cost estimate for complete program 

from initial CSO Master Plan $

2) Revised total cost estimate for complete program

from Updated CSO Master Plan (includes all prior costs and update costs) $

3) Total cost of CSO abatement to date $

4) Percent complete by cost, (%) %

5) Cumulative SRF loans for CSO abatement (see instructions for more detail) $

6) Total cost of CSO projects in reporting year (see instructions for more detail) $

7) Anticipated budget for CSO projects next year $

8) Sewer O&M budget in reporting year $

9) Anticipated sewer O&M budget for next year $

10) Estimated CSO needs for next five years (include cost in no.7) $

E. Private inflow sources:

1) Has a house to house survey been done on a sewershed or system-wide basis? No

2) If yes, when?

3) If no, is one planned? No

4) If no, when? (For additional space, use the text box in section 2-K)

5) Number of roof leaders removed to date

6) Number of roof leaders removed in reporting year

7) Number of known roof leaders remaining in system

8) Number of basement sump pumps removed to date

9) Number of basement sump pumps removed in reporting year

10) Number of known sump pumps remaining in system

11) Number of known foundation drains to system

12) Do you charge a surcharge for private sources? No

13) If yes, how much and what unit? $

(Yes, No)

1,629,000

(Each, Per 100 c.f.)

(Yes, No)

(Yes, No)

1,449,000

not planned

4,000,000

(Yes, No)

We are currently seeking funds in the upcoming budget process to start the update of our CSO 

master plan and asset management plan for the entire sewer collection system. 

Project

1,176,000

Estimate of flow reductions

117

3,350,000

67,053

4,671,415

500,642

503,257

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 2



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

F. Other inflow sources

1) Number of catch basins removed this year

2) Number of catch basins remaining in system

3) Are you aware of any wetlands/bogs draining to sewer? No

4) Are you aware of any streams intercepted by sewer? No

5) If yes to 3 or 4, what plans are there to deal with them?

G.

H. Yearly precipitation, CSO events, volumes, or block test data.

I. Work done on the Nine Minimum Controls during the year.

1)

a. Who is responsible for combined sewer system O&M?

Name Tel. No.

Title

Dept.

Size Staff 14

b. Inspection schedules

Number of CSO regulators 0

Number of tide gates 0

Number of pump stations 8

Number of CSO outfalls 1 As Needed

Inspection interval

Inspection interval

3/week

Inspection interval

(Yes, No)

Inspection interval

(Enter data on Excel spreadsheet: CSO Activity & Volumes.xlsx)

Results of any specific flow monitoring to determine effectiveness of previous CSO abatement

 projects.  Compare actual CSO abatement with projections made during the CSO Master Plan.

(Yes, No)

Results of operation and maintenance (O&M) program for the sewer system and combined sewer 

system overflows during the year.

207-862-3337Sean Currier

Director of Public Works 

Public Works

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 3



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

c.

Catch Basin Cleaning

Total # of Basins # of Basins Cleaned

Last Year Last Year

417 42 4 Cu. Yds.

(Please attach cleaning schedule if available)

Sewer Cleaning

Total Combined Footage Cleaned

Sewer Last Year

0  lin. ft. 25,131  lin. ft. 0

(Please attach cleaning schedule if available)

Pump Station Cleaning

Cleaning Frequency Inspection Frequency

As Needed 3/week

TV Work

Sewer & Storm Footage Televised TV Frequency

16,000  lin. ft. As Needed

Smoke Testing

Sewer & Storm Footage Tested Dates of Smoke Testing

 lin. ft.  (mm/dd/yy)

Infiltration/Inflow Study

I/I Study Was Performed On

Linear Feet Of Sewer

Document the following activities that were performed and include the tons or cubic yards of debris 

removed last year from catch basins and sewers.

(Tons, Cu. Yds.)

(Tons, Cu. Yds.)

Debris Removed

Debris Removed

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 4



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

2) Maximum Use of the Collection System for Storage

a.

1.

2.

3.

4.

b.

Number of Special Storm Drain Gratings Installed

Comments:

Number of Flow Control Type Devices Installed

Comments:

c. Describe any tide gate maintenance and repair to eliminate tidal intrusions.  (list individually)

1.

2.

3.

Attach a schedule for implementation of any minor construction associated with maximizing

the collection system for storage.

List any regulators or weirs that were adjusted last year to optimize settings for maximum storage.  

(list individually)

Maximum use of the collection system for storage means making relatively simple modifications to the 

combined sewer system to enable the system itself to store wet weather flows until downstream sewers 

and treatment facilities can handle them.  The municipality should evaluate more complex 

modifications as part of the long-term control plan.

Maintenance/Repair

Document attempts last year to retard inflows to the system by use of special gratings or flow 

control type devices.

Tide Gate

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 5



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

3)

Do you have an industry that significantly impacts a CSO? No

4) Maximization of Flow to the POTW for Treatment

a. List any change completed or planned last year to maximize flow to the POTW. (list individually)

ESTIMATED 

COST ($)

ESTIMATED 

COMPLETION 

DATE 

(MM/DD/YY)

ESTIMATED 

YEARLY 

DECREASE IN 

EVENTS

(Yes, No)

ESTIMATED 

YEARLY 

DECREASE IN 

VOLUME (MG)

PLANNED PHYSICAL 

CHANGE

Fill in this section only if you have nondomestic source of wastewater.

What measures or modifications were taken last year to insure that nondomestic sources are not 

contributing to CSO impacts.  (Examples of measures: Inventory of nondomestic discharges to the 

combined sewer, assessment of nondomestic discharges on CSOs, evaluation of feasible modifications)

Maximizing flow to the POTW entails simple modifications to the combined sewer system and 

treatment plant to enable as much wet weather flow as possible to reach the treatment plant.  The 

objective of this minimum control is to reduce the magnitude, frequency, and duration of CSOs that 

flow untreated into receiving waters.

Review any Modification of the Industrial Pretreatment Program to Assure that CSO Impacts Are 

Minimized

The municipality should determine whether nondomestic sources are contributing to CSO impact and, 

if so, investigate ways to control them.  The objective of this control is to minimize the impacts of 

discharges into combined sewer systems from significant nondomestic sources (i.e., industrial and 

commercial sources during wet weather events, and to minimize CSO occurrences by modifying 

inspection, reporting, and oversight procedures within the approved pretreatment program.

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 6



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

5) Prohibition of CSO Discharges During Dry Weather

a. Did you have a dry weather CSO discharge during the last year? No

If yes, explain (list individually).  Do not report Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) below.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6) Control of Solid and Floatable Material in CSO Discharges

a.

Baffles in Regulators or Overflow Structures:

  Number of Baffles Installed: Success:

Trash Racks in CSO Discharge Structures:

  Number of Trash Racks Installed: Success:

Catch Basin Modifications:

  Number of Modifications: Success:

(Yes, No)

The intent of this control is to document that low cost control measures have been implemented which 

reduce solids and floatables discharged from CSOs to the maximum extent practicable.

List any of the following control measures that were implemented last year to reduce solids and 

floatables discharged from CSOs.  If control measures were implemented, list their Success.

This control includes all measures taken to ensure that the combined sewer system does not overflow 

during dry weather flow conditions.  Dry weather overflow control measures include improved O&M 

as well as physical changes to regulator and overflow devices.

(Good, Fair, Poor)

(Good, Fair, Poor)

(Good, Fair, Poor)

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 7



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

End of Pipe Nets:

  Number of Nets Installed: Success:

Litter Controls:

  Litter Control: (Yes, No) 

Other Controls:

Type of Control Success:

b.

 (Tons, Cu. Yds.)

(Attach any schedules and associated costs for implementation of this control.)

7) Pollution Prevention Programs That Focus on Contaminant Reduction Activities

a. Document any of the following efforts last year to implement this control.

MS4 permit compliance and BASWG (Bangor Area Stormwater Group) membership - 

minimum control measures 1 (Public Education and Outreach), 2 (Public Involvement), and 6 

(Pollution Prevention / Good Housekeeping) include annual community activities such as 

street/stream cleanups and catch basin stenciling. More detail on these efforts can be found in 

Town of Hamdpen MS4 annual report (available on request) and on the BASWG website 

The Town maintains garbage receptacles at all cemeteries, the Marina and all Parks.

Strategic placement of garbage receptacles, more efficient garbage collection.

The estimated amount of solids and floatables removed last year by implementing the above control 

measures.

The seventh minimum control, pollution prevention, is intended to keep contaminants from entering the 

combined sewer system and thus receiving water via CSOs.

Public education or increased awareness programs that encourage water conservation and could 

decrease dry weather sanitary flow to the POTW and increase the volume of wet weather flows that 

can be treated at the POTW.

(Good, Fair, Poor)

(Good, Fair, Poor)

(Good, Fair, Poor)

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 8



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

Street sweeping efforts with estimate of material removed (tons/yr, cy/yr).

b. Does the community have a hazardous waste collection program? No

If yes, how often is it collected?

If yes, how much hazardous waste is collected?

Efforts to eliminate illegal dumping.  Programs such as law enforcement and public education 

aimed at controlling illegal dumping of litter, tires, and other materials into water bodies or onto the 

ground.

The public works department swept all roads this year. Typically we hire a contractor to 

sweep in Town but weather worked in our favor and we were able to get the sweeping 

accomplished in-house. We collected approximately 20 cu yds of material which was 

benficially reused in culvert replacement projects.

Hampden is a member of the Bangor Area Stormwater Group. Outreach is part of our MS4 

program requirement and is accomplished by multiple avenues including facebook, Town 

Newsletters, Town Website, etc. 

Hampden has a Solid Waste Flow Control Ordinance which governs municipal solid waste. 

Also, as previously mentioned, we are members of BASWG and public outreach and 

education are required for these items.

(Yes, No)

Anti-litter campaigns; campaigns through public outreach and public service announcements 

employed to educate the public about effects of littering, over fertilizing, pouring used motor oil 

down catch basins, etc.

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 9



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

c.

d.

8)

a. Locations where signs are posted.

Are all CSO outfalls locations marked with a sign in accordance with your permit? 

Yes

List any other locations where CSO signs are posted (public beach, information center, 

town office, etc.).

b. List dates of CSO informational public hearings or meetings last year.  (list individually)

1. 2.

3. 4.

(Yes, No)

List the individual(s) responsible for your community's stormwater management program, their title 

and contact information.

List and describe stormwater pollution prevention measures and BMPs (e.g., biofilters, bioswales, 

rain gardens) completed or planned for implementation.  Attach any schedules and cost estimates 

associated with this control.

Stormwater Coordinator: Karen Cullen-Town Planner @ 862-4500. Stormwater Team: Sean 

Currier, Public Works Director @ 862-3337. Kyle Severence, GIS/IT @ 862-4500. Angus 

Jennings, Town Manager @ 862-3034. Myles Block, Code Enforcement @ 862-4500. 

To reduce pollutants in any stormwater runoff to the MS4 from construction activities that 

result in a land disturbance of greater than or equal to one acre within its urbanized area, the 

Town relies on the Maine General permit and Chapter 500. Also, the Town's post 

construction ordinance and non-stormwater discharge ordinance are used by the Hampden 

There is a sign at the Main Road (at the CSO facility) which is visible to pedestrians and vehicles 

Public Notification to Ensure That the Public Receives Adequate Notification of CSO Occurrences and 

CSO Impacts

The objective of this control is to ensure that the public receives adequate notification of CSO impacts 

on pertinent water use areas.  Of particular concern are beach and recreational areas that are affected 

by pollutants discharged in CSOs.

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 10



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

c. List any other measures to inform the public that occurred last year (e.g. radio announcements, 

flyers, social media, dedicated webapge).

9) Monitoring to Effectively Characterize CSO Impacts and the Effectiveness of CSO Controls

a.

Flow Meters

Frequency Data Collected

1. Daily

2.

3.

4.

Blocks

Inspection Frequency

After Rain Event

Chalklines

Inspection Frequency

Other monitoring methods?

Check off and fill in information on the following monitoring methods used in overflow structures:   

(list individually)

BLOCK DATA IS USED AT THE ONE CSO DISCHARGE POINT AS WELL AS SCADA

CSO#1 Outfall 

Locations

CSO Outlet Structure

Locations

Locations

Facebook and the Town website along with a BASWG Facebook page are used to inform the 

public of events occurring in Hampden.

The ninth minimum control involves visual inspection and other simple methods to determine the 

occurrence and apparent impacts of CSOs.  This minimum control is an initial characterization of the 

combined sewer system to collect and document information on overflow occurrences and known water 

quality problems and incidents, such as beach or shellfish bed closures, that reflect use impairments 

caused by CSOs.  Changes in the occurrences of such incidents can provide a preliminary indication of 

the effectiveness of the Nine Minimum Controls.

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 11



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

b. Has a hydraulic/hydrologic model been developed?

Is the model used to report CSO discharge occurrences?

Has it been updated to reflect collection system asset changes:

If yes, when was the model last updated? (mm/dd/yy)

c. CSO impacts to swimming beaches and shellfishing areas.

List any swimming beaches that may be impacted by your CSOs. (list individually)

1.

2.

Does your community or other entity test the water quality at beaches or near your CSOs?

Frequency?

If yes, list dates of test and results

Dates

 ( mm/dd/yy)

 ( mm/dd/yy)

 ( mm/dd/yy)

Any beach closing last year? 

Were they caused, in whole or in part by CSOs?

What are the procedures for notifying the public of beach closures?

List any shellfishing areas that may be impacted by your CSOs.  (list individually)

Conditionally Opened

1.

2.

3.

4.

Closed

Results

(Yes, No)

(Yes, No)

(Yes, No)

(Yes, No)

(Yes, No)

(Yes, No)

Open

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 12



ANNUAL CSO PROGRESS REPORT FOR 2017

Any shellfish areas closed last year?

If yes, list dates indivdually:

(mm/dd/yy)

(mm/dd/yy)

(mm/dd/yy)

(mm/dd/yy)

(mm/dd/yy)

(mm/dd/yy)

(mm/dd/yy)

(mm/dd/yy)

If yes, were the closures caused, in whole or in part by CSOs?

Please provide results of any receiving water quality tests or CSO sampling tests done last year.

J.

K. Please add any other information on CSOs that you feel is important, but the form did not allow for.

We are currently requesting funds from the Town Council to start the process of updating our CSO 

master plan including our Asset Management, Capital Improvement plan and abatement plan. We 

have replaced a significant amount of sewer mains within our collection system and are planning on 

additional replacements to help with I/I reduction. We are also now currently funding cctv of the 

collection system over a 5-7 year period per our Capital Improvement plan provided future Council's 

vote in favor of continuing our current progress.

(Yes, No)

(Yes, No)

List any sewer extensions and new commercial or industrial flows added during the year, along with any 

mitigating measures implemented to prevent these flows from contributing to CSO flows.

Please provide a map showing any swimming beaches or shellfish area that may be impacted by 

your CSOs.

The sewer ordinance in Hampden has been revised to better control installation procedures and 

monitoring during construction which help reduce inflow and infiltration as well as giving the Town 

the ability to monitor any commercial or industrial flow with our sewer ordinance and pretreatment 

program.

Doc Num: DEPLW0059-L2016 13



Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Fwd: Main Rd North Sewer Map 
1 message

Kyle Severance <gisit@hampdenmaine.gov> Thu, Mar 15, 2018 at 4:15 PM
To: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

FYI

Kyle Severance 
GIS/IT Specialist
E911 Addressing Officer
Town of Hampden, Maine 
O: (207)862-4500 ext 142 | M: (207)852-7207 | F: (207)862-5067 

---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: Kyle Severance <gisit@hampdenmaine.gov> 
Date: Thu, Mar 15, 2018 at 4:13 PM 
Subject: Main Rd North Sewer Map 
To: Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov>, Kyle Corbeil <kcorbeil@woodardcurran.com>, Danielle Simons
<danielle@hampdenmaine.gov> 

Good Afternoon,

The first round of sewer data collected by Ted Berry Co. has now been put into GIS. To make the data readily available to others I
pushed it out into a webmap located here. When you zoom in and click on a manhole or pipe a pop-up will display with attribute data
as well a document link to the inspection reports. 

As additional data comes in, I will update this map. Please let me know if you see any errors.

ps: please be aware that some pipe lengths are not showing up correctly due to reversals - I should have this fixed shortly.

Kyle Severance 
GIS/IT Specialist
E911 Addressing Officer
Town of Hampden, Maine 
O: (207)862-4500 ext 142 | M: (207)852-7207 | F: (207)862-5067 

tel:(207)%20862-4500
tel:(207)%20852-7207
tel:(207)%20862-5067
mailto:gisit@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:kcorbeil@woodardcurran.com
mailto:danielle@hampdenmaine.gov
https://arcg.is/9eTjX
tel:(207)%20862-4500
tel:(207)%20852-7207
tel:(207)%20862-5067
townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-c



 



townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-d








